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Management commentary

These accounts comply with the provisions of Section 4(3) of the Alomic Energy Authority Act 1954 and Directions
issued by HW Treasury, The Act requires the Compiroller and Auditor General (C8AG) to examine and certify the
accounts and lay copies, together with his report, before cach House of Parliament. A copy of the CEAG's certificate
and reporl can be found on pages 26 to 27,

Background

The Group comprises the United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) and its subsidiary undertakings AEA
Insurance Ltd and UKAFA Lid. UKAFA is a Non-Departmental Public Body sponsored by the Department of Trade
and Industry (1) and was originally established as a public corporation by the Atomic Energy Authority Act 1954
to pioncer the development of nudear energy in the UK.

Cur primary task today is managing the decommissioning of nudear reactors and other radioactive fadilities used
for the dvil nudear research and development programmes in a safe and environmentally responsible manner
and restoring nuclear sites for convenlional use. We also manage the UK contribution to fusion research within
the European and world programime,

We have five operational sitesin the UK: Culham, Dounreay, Harwell, Windscale and Winfrith. With the exception
of Culham, all are licensed under the Muclear Installations Act 1965.

Culham, Oxfordshire, is the centre for the UK fusion programme. It was established in 1960 and occupies
approximately 180 acres. Inrecentyears the site has expanded and diversified and isthe host to the Joint European
Torus (JET), currently the prindpal project in the Furopean fusion programme. The sile also indudes UKAFA fusion
research fadlities.

Dounreay, Caithness, pioneered the development of fast reactor technology in the UK, The site was opened in
1955 and three reactors were built over the next 20years - the Dounrcay Fast Reactorn, Prototype Fast Reactor and
the Dounreay Materials Test Reactor, All are now dosed and significant progress is being made to decommission
the reactors and ancillary nudear facilities and to restore the environment,

Harwell, Oxfordshire, is the headquar lersolUKAEA and was formerly RAF Harwell. Following the dosure of Harwell's
three research reactors (GLEER DIDG and PLUTOY in 19940, significant progress has been made in remaoving the
sile’s nuclear fadlities. Environmental restoration work continues and applications are being prepared Lo delicense
restored former nuclear areas so they can be released for unresiricted use,

Windscale, Cumbria, is situated an the British Mudear Fuels ple Sellafield site and has ils own site licence. The sile
includes Windscale Files | and I, and the Windscale Advanced Gas-Cooled Reactor (WAGH). The Windscale Piles
weere shut down in 1957 following the Windscale fire and Pile | is now being decommissioned, WAGR was shut
down in 1987 and is now the UK's demonstration project for complele decammissioning of a power-generaling
advanced gas-cooled reactor.

Winfrith, Dorset, was chosen for development in the mid 19505 when it had become necessary to assess the wide
variety of different reactor types being developed in the UK, Significantprogress hasbeocn made in decommissioning
the sile o continue the development of a thriving sdence and lechnology park. The main fadlity at Winfrith
was the Steam Generating Heawvy Water Reactor which was dosed in 1990 and is now being decommissioned.
Decommissioning isbeing accelerated and the castern end of the site has been sold to English Partnerships.

Until 31 March 2004, the decommissioning programme at our siteswas funded by D11 in the form of grant-in-aid.
Fream 1 April 2005 hnandal responsibility for the decommissioning of the UK civil nuclear sites passed to the
Muclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) under the Lnergy Act 2004, We now operate asa contractor to the MDA
for the management of the decommissioning at our sites, DT no lenger provide funding for our decommissioning
prograrmme although they continue Lo fund other areas of our business,
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Muclear clean-up

UKAL A is a byword for excellence in nuclear clean-up, As one of the world's most experienced decommissioning
companies, we draw on a proven track record and a high level of technical expertise to offer our custormers a full
range of spedalist decommissioning, waste management and environmental remediation services,

In 20052006 we achieved performance that compares well with the best internationally, in delivering site
restoralion programmes under conlract Lo the NDA, The year has also seen significant developments as we look 1o
maove into new markets and broaden our portfalio of dients, Having bolstered our commerdal capabilities, we are
nowy competing strangly and contract winsin a range of service arcasindicate that this strategy is bearing fruit.

Business development

Following Government approval of our business plan in April 2005, we intensified preparations to bid for MDA,
contracts at UK civil nuclear sites - our core market - and beyond. [n support of this inJanuary 2006 we formed an
alliance with AMFC ple and CH2 M HILL 1o compete in this markel.

UKAEA is also targeting low risk opportunities outside the NDA market, induding other nudear-orientated
organisations within the UK and programmes in Luropean Union accession states and the Former Soviet Union.
Building on our existing reputation, we have alrcady made progress in establishing ourselves in these markets,
winning contracts o supply decommissioning, wasle management, programme managemenl and assurance
services during 2005-2006,

Delivering NDA contracts

Performance in site dean-up programmes al Dounreay, Harwell, Windscale and Winfrith was strong. We delivered
95.5 per cent of NDA performance based incentives on or ahead of schedule and completed the vear's work at
12 per cent below estimated cost, while maintaining a good salety and environmental record.

Our site restoration plans consolidated the major accelerations and cost reductions we announced in 20042005,
despile absorbing an extra £290 million share of national waste disposal costs. Further accelerations during
2005-2006 enabled us to complete an additional £24 million (around 10 per cent) of budgeted work compared to
the original yvear's work plan.

Operational highlights induded

Decormmissioning

LKAEA completed the decommissioning of the ZEBRA reactor atWinfrith during 2005 2006, The project was safely
carried oul to lime and cost and was a further milestone in the programme Lo decommission the Winfrith site by
2017, which will make it the UK's first major nuclear site to be fully restored. First phase decommissioning of the
site's landmark Steam Generating Heavy Water Reactor also began during 2005 2006, Waork progressed well and
was 17 weeks ahead of schedule al the year end.

Good progress was made in reducing major harards at the Dounreay site. Disposal of coolant from the Prololype
IFast Reactor continued, with over 1,100 tonnes of material now sately processed - aworld record for liquid metal
destruction - and deanup savings of £1 million made through new thinking on sodium ramoval, Dounrcay Fast
Reaclor decommissioning moved forward, including dismantling of reactor components, completion of the Nak
disposal plant and construction work on a containment building for breeder removal. Considerable progresswas
made at the Dounrcay Material Testing Reactor — notably the demolition of support buildings and removal of
equipment from the pond fadlity. Successiul trials were also carried oul in preparation for isolating the Dounreay
waste shaft from the surrounding environment.

Decommissioning at Harwell progressed well. Iwo hangars that previously housed experimental fadlities were
demolished, allowing the cearance of a 15-aae arca for new development, We used innovative engineering
techniques Lo take lorward the dean-up of the B393.6 remote handling building and made excellent progress in
decommissioning the site's Liquid Lffluent Ireatment Plant,



Urdted Kingdern Atamic Enargy Suthanity Accounts 2005-2006

.

At Windscale, the year saw the first intrusive survey of the File 1 reactor core since it was damaged by fire in
1957. The infermation gathered will be crucdial in designing a safe decommissioning plan. Meanwhile we advanced
the site restoration programme with a series of building demolitions in preparation for the final removal of
reactor structures,

Wt e managerment

Recovery and repackaging of historc wasle stocks into improved storage conditions at Harwell is ahead of
schedule, UKALA continues to develop the technology to deliver this challenging programme - a key part of the
siteds restoration plan - by the 20105 target date.

The Dounreay WRACS plant processed its 30,000th waste drum and has produced major reductions in the velurme
of low level wasle stored al the site in its five years of operation,

We have taken forward plans to add to Dounrcay's industry-leading waste management facilities, In particular,
construction of a new waste handling fadlity, which will increase the site’s capacity for conditioning and sloring
waste from decommissioning, continued on track for completion in 2007, Preparations for a key plant toimmohilise
liquid fast reactor waste - the largest single hazard at Dounrcay - also advanced, with construction expected to
srartin 200/,

Lard remediation

Fioneenng dean-up lechnologies are being tested in a key land remediation project al Harwell, Chemical waste
landhll at the site’s Western Storage Area was excavated last year, and we have begun work on dealing with
groundwater pollution in the chalk below the area, The vapour extraction techniques being wialled are a world
first and will allow us to accelerate the overall project limescale.

Fusion research

LIKAEA is at the heart of intemational efforts to fulfil the huge promise of fusion as a carbon free cnergy alternative,

lusion technology will harness the process that powers the sun and stars to produce a reliable and secure source
of energy here on carth. Fusion power stations would have many attractive features. Supplies of the required tuds
are virtually limilless; there are none of the environmenlal emissions assodated with lossil-fuelled generation and
nolong-ived radicactive waste; and fusion is aninherently safe system.

The focus of fusion REL is now shifting from the physics of creating and maintaining a hot gas in which fusion
ooours, o integrating this plasma with the technologies necded in a power station and identifying materials
thal can survive years of operation in a fusion reactor. The next phases are construclion of the ITER international
tokamak experiment and of the proposed International Fusion Materials Irradiation Facility.

As well as having a contracl o operate the waorld-leading loinl Furopean Torus (JET) fadlity for experiments by
teams of European scientists and undertaking the UK's ovwn contributions to international fusion research, UKAEA
has mapped oul the sleps needed Lo make commerdal fusion power plants areality. I this fast-track development
programme is followed, which would cost the equivalent of a few weeks spending in the international energy
markets, electricity could be gencrated from fusion in under 30 years,

Supporting ITER

ITLR is the next major international fusion research project and is a key step towards achieving commercial fusion
power. The €5 billion praject will produce fusion reactiaons at a scale and in conditions that should demansirate
the technological feasibility of fusion as an energy source,

In June 2005, it was announced that ITER will be built at Cadarache in southern France. The ITER site opened in
December 2005 and the first staff have arrived to prepare the way for the fadility, which is expected to begin
operating in 2076,
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Az a key player in the international fusion community, UKALA is taking a leading role in securing benefits from
ITER development and construction 1o the UK. We are discussing with UK Trade & Investment ways in which
British industrial involverentin ITER can be maximised. In December 2005, a major workshop on I1LR contract
opportunities in Barcelona brought together 700 representatives from European industry and fusion rescarch, We
joined forces with UK Government and industry ina 75-strong contingent Lo spell oul the message that the UK is
ready to help build ITLE.

UK fusion programme

The Frgineering and Physical Sciences RBesearch Council (FPSRO) provides most of the funding for the UK
programme (the remainder is from LURATOM). LPSRC awarded UKALA a major four-year grant in 2004 and in
2005 announced increased resources for fusion - a further indication of confidence in the progress being made
at Culhar,

The UK programme’s lead facility, the Mega Ampere Spherical Tokamak (dAST), was in operation for much of
2005, during which good progress was made across a range of key research areas. Nolable advances were made
in the understanding of plasma stability, confinement, heating and exhaust of heat and particles in this novel
fusion experiment. Many of these studies were carried out in dose collaboration with international partmers and
UK universities,

We continued lo develop and implement new saphisticated measuring instruments Lo probe the plasma and
also made significant improvements to plasma control systems in 2005, Looking forward, there is an on-going
programme to develop the plasma heating systems on MAST further and design studies for a proposed major
upgrade of MAST are also being carried out,

JET

Over the past two years IET has had a long and complicated shutdown during which major modifications have
been made, induding installation of many new items of equipment, The unique size and flexibility of the JE1
device has made these modifications possible, so that a new series of experimental campaigns can beundertaken
in direct supporl of ITER. While the installations went well, there were a number of lechnical problems in the
commissioning and restart phase, Lxperiments resumed just after Laster 2006,

International collaboration

Following last year's move of the START fadlity to Italy, UKAEA agreed Lo give the COMPASS-D device, which
operated at Culham until 2000, to the (zech Republic for its own research programme and to help train fusion
scientists in European Union accession states. The machine should leave Culham towards the end of 2006,

Education outreach programme

UKALA has launched the next phase of its successful fusion educational outreach programme. The interactive
SolarSphere’ project will tour schools and science fairs to engage students between the ages of @ and 13 in
the science behind fusion. It builds on our well-established tusion roadshow and programme of student visits
to Culham,

Property regeneration

UKAEA believes thal regeneration is an integral part of the lifecycle for ils sites, ensuring that high quality
employment opportunities will remain after the current programmes come to an end.

We have created thriving sdence and technology parks at Harwell and Winfrith on land released through
decormmissioning, by securing planning consents, developing the infrastructure and attracting new tenants. This
waork continues at Harwell as we lead exciting plans Lo aeate a world dass campus for scence and innovation.

At Culham Sdence Centre, there is alse a range of mainly high-tech tenants and an lnnovation Centre for
slarl-up cempanies,
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Harwell Science and Innovation Campus

Harwell is already one of the largest centres for science and technology in the UK. ILis home Lo 100 organisations
and some of the world's most prestigious research fadlities and teams. The campus is a natural venue for major
science engineering and technology initiatives and over £500 million is now being invested in new facdilities,

Recognising this potential, the UK Government has identified Harwell as a key site in its Science and Innovation
Investrment Framework 2004 - 2074 Mext Steps document, published in March 2006, It aims to develop the campus
as alocation for internationally-compelitive sdence prajects, a foous for public sector research and private sector
investrment and for knowledge transfer between academic and commercial interests,

In Cctober 20005, the ambitious proposals for the campu s were set out at a conference in London, Leading figures
from Gowverniment, industry and the research community met to disouss how Harwell will play a vital role in
boosting Britain's sdence and innovalion performance,

UKAEA is leading the project with other key occupicers on the campus and will form a jeint venture with private
seclor partners Lo accelerale the development of the campus and its infrastructure and amenilies,

During 20052006, we continued ta oversee the expansion of the business centre at Harwell, New building s have
taken shape and more tenants have been atiracted to the site as an excellent location to grow their businesses,
Frogress has induded

B full occupancy of the first part of the Library office redevel opment and completion of the second phase
B thestart of construction work on a new F4 million headguarters building for educational IT spedalists UKERMNA;
B the opening of a new Y90-place nursery to support employees on the campus.

Construction of the Diamond Light Source, on land leased by UKAEA, is on course and operations will start in
early 200/, Diamond - jointly funded by the Council for the Central Laboratory of the Research Councils (CCLRC)
and the Wellcome Trust - is the UK'S largest new scientific fadlity for 30 years and will lead to breakthroughs in
pharmaceutical research, earth sciences, materials sdence and medical treatments.

Culham Scence Centre

At Culham, the site’s Innovation Centre run by Oxford Innovation) is celebrating five years of supporting
rechnology-based businesses and is poised to expand as it locks o further success in the future, The Inngwvation
Centre is fully occupied and plans are now underway to secure further accommodation. A number of its start-up
companies receive assistance from the fusion programime via UKAEA' technical support package, allowing them
to benefit from exper lise gained in fusion research in their own commerdal applications.

Corporate social responsibility

As a nudear operator, we believe that sodal and environmental responsibility is particularly important to the way
we do business. Responsible working is embedded within our culture - established in our main corporate values
and integral to the decision-making processright through the organisation.

In praclice, this means

zafequarding the health and safety of the public, our employees and contractors;
protecting the environment;

heing open and transparent in our communications with the public;

consulting and engaging with our stakeholders;

supporting the prosperity and well-being of communities around our sites; and

dealing fairly with our contractors and suppliers,
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lo ensure we are meeting our obligations, we have adopted the well-established "Winning with Integrity’ model
for corporate sodal responsibility (CSR). This is backed up with independent CSR audits 1o provide a structured
approach for judging our progress and identifying areas for improvement.

The benehls of this approach are dear: our operations are carried outwith sensitivity for the environment; and the
support of local people, planning authorities and regulators enables us o complete our projects smoaothly.

Safety, health, environment and security

Our business requires the highest levels of safety, seourity and envirenmental protection and anything less is
unacceptable. Safe working is, and will remain, our top priority.

Wehave asalely-focused culture, anintegrated approadh to securily, safely, health and environmental management
and an excellent pertormance record. However, we know we can still do better, We strive towards a goal of no
harm to people, property and the environment from our operations and no reduction in security, and we have
strong mechanisms Lo learn and share experience across the company.

Safety, health, environment and security record

Our performance in 2005-2006 was good, with deceases recorded in the number of salely, health and
environmental events, reportable injuries, lost time acddents and in the employee radiation dose rate. Our high
standards were reflected by the achicvement of one of the UK's most coveted safety awards - a Boval Sodety for
the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) Gold Medal for best praclice in health and salety.

Howeowver, we wore disappointed by the safety inddent that occurred at the Dounrcay Comentation Plant in
Seplember 2005, The plant is on course tarestarl in autumn 2006 aflter the clean-up of a spillage of cement and
radicactive liquid inside a scaled mixing cell. Lessons learned from the event gave added focus to a complete
overhaul of the sile's organisation and safely management that took place during the year.

Safety, health and environmental events - The number of events across our sites within the reporting period
decreased to the lowesl number since the system was introduced around a decade ago. There were 40 evenls in
20045-2006, compared to 48 in the previous year,

RIDNOR Reportable fnjuries Incidence Rate - This incudes injuries which result in employees being unable 1o
complete their normal work for more than three days, as well as major injuries as defined by the UK Reporting of
Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Ocourrences Regulations (RIDDOR) Regulations. In 2005-2006 UKAFA recorded a
rate of 262, areduction from 425 the previous year. Although this iigure compares favourably with other industries,
we are determined to reduce the rate even further.,

Radiation dose - The total radiation dose to individuals working for UKALA in the 2004 calendar year remained
lowe. Mo employes received a dose greater than 3.20mSy, approximately 16 per cent of the allowed annual dose.
The average dose received by employees was 0.10mSy, equivalent to 3.7 per cent of the average background
radicactive dose received by members of the public,

Lost ime Accident frequency Rate — Our Lost lime Accident [requency Rate during the year dropped to (.16 per
100,000 hours worked. This is a decrease compared o the previous year’s figure of 0.35 per 100,000 hours.

international Nudear Lvent Scale (INLS) = INLS is a worldwide system for identifying the seriousness of any incident
irvolving nudear plant. Itis devised by the Intermational Atomic Energy Agency and managed in the UK by the
Mudear Installations Inspeclorate, The scale moves lrom 1 (Canomaly’) to 7 (major acadent?, During the year
UKALA recorded two Level 1 INLS events,

international Safety Rating System (ISA5) - 15RS is an independently audited system used to benchmark satery
management at thousands of industrial sites across the world. High I3RS scores were maintained at our sites, with
Dounreay at | evel B oul of 10 and all other licensed sites al Level 7.
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Muclear Material Unaccounted For (MUI) - The nuclear material unaccounted for figures for 2004-200% were
published by the Department of Trade and Industry in February 2006, The MUF figures for UKAFA gave no cause
for concern,

Emergency arrangements — Al the end of the year all our sites had been assessed by the regulator as having
demaonsirated adequate emergency arrangements as part of their Level 1 exercises,

ISOT00T environmental certification — In 2005-2006 we maintained independently audited 150140070 certificates
for our nudear licensed sites and for the Culham site. This indicates the effectiveness of our environmental
management systoms and our commitment to continual improvernent. This will be demonstrated again in
2006 as our sites prepare to be re-certified to 1S014007:2004 standard, showing that we can operate within even
stricter guidalines.

Radiological discharges - We continued to make discharges of very low levels of radicactive substances in liquid
and gascous form in accord ance with authorisations given by the Environment Agency and Scottish Environment
Proteclion Agency under the Radioaclive Substances Acl. The authorisations include limils that are set by the
agencies ar levels well below those that would cause harm to human health or to the environment. In addition
to this, we used Best Practicable Means option studics to further minimise our discharges. Confinmation that our
discharges have a negligible impact on the environment surrounding our sites was demonstrated by the results
of extensive environmental monitoring programmes throughout 2005 2006, [n addition to this, sections of the
Dounreay sile have operated successfully under a Pollution, Prevention and Contral (IPPC) Permil for non-ferrous
metal processes.

Dounreay particles - We sought views from the public aboul the management of partides in Dounreay s marine
environment, as a precursor to consultation on the options in 2006, Seabed surveys were carried out using a
robotic underwater monitoring device and monitoring of local beaches continued. Independent assessments
carried out for SEPA confirmed the low risk to members of the public who use the beaches. Work also continued
to assess alternative technologies for beach monitoring.

Security - Upholding high security standards throughout the company was a constant theme during the year. This
focus ensured that our sites maintained compliance with the Nudear Industries Security Regulations 2003 and
thal there were no securily breaches invalving nudear material at sites orin transit. Our sile securily regimes were
periodically inspectad and tested by the regulator (the Office for Civil Mucdlear Security), providing a high level of
assurance that security standards are being fully maintained.

Engagingwith our stakeholders

We place greatimportance on working closely with our stakeholders to ensure that projects are carried out in an
acceptable manner, During 20052006 we undertook a range of initiatives to strengthen stakeholder relations.

Our public participation programmes, which enable people to give their views on projects that could affect their
local environment are recognised as forming best practicewithin the UK nud ear industry. We continued to involve
the public in deading options lor site dean-up in 2005-2006

W in December 2005, we launched the preliminary phase of a major consultation on options for managing
radicactive particles in the marine environmenl at Dounreay;

B we sought the community ‘s views on siting of a new low-level radioactive waste fadility near Dounreay, We
identificd an alternative location after listening to the views of local residents and this dialogue is cngoing;

B at Harwdl, we began consulting local people on the managament of high volume/low activity solid waste
generated by decommissioning; and

B wealsostarted a stakeholder consultation on the best option for managing waste on the Windscale site,

In April 2005, the NDA established a national network of independently-chaired site stakeholder groups toreplace
previous local liaison committees, We played a full part in forming reconstituted groups at Dounreay, Harwell,
Winfrith and in areating aWindscale committee of the West Cumbria Sites Stakeholder Group, Our staff maintained
an open dialogue with these groups throughout the year. As part of the MDA’ aim Lo agree end slates for all UK
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decornmissioning sites, we are fadlitating local consultations in partnership with the site stakeholder groups,
which will e complerted during 2006-2007,

During the NDAS firstyear of operation, we hosted aseries of visits by Board members and senior staff tofamiliarise
therm with the sile programmes and update them on the progress being achieved an dean-up projects.

Supporting local communities

We are cornmitted to the well-being of the communities in which we operate. We generate economic benefts
by maintaining a healthy local supply chain and developing skills and opportunities that can be sustained in
the long-term.

Al Dounreay, for example, we are playing a key role in the North Highland Initiative, launched in August 2005,
through the provision of a project co-ordinator seconded from UKALA. We are also one of a number of
agencies represented on the Caithness Sodo-economic Working Group, established in July 2005 and dhaired by
lohn Thursa MP,

More evidence can be seen in our continuing commitment to high quality apprenticeship programmes. The
long-established Dounreay scheme is set to feature an enhanced programme of traditional craft training with
a spedalism in decommissioning. This will maintain an emphasis on the engineering skills demanded in today's
waorkplace while providing the practical training lo work in the expanding opporunities of decommissioning
nuclear fadlities like those at Dounreay. We also launched a new apprentice scheme at Culham during 2005, aimed
at training a new generation of fusion technicians,

We pride ourselves on strong community links and play an active role in local life by providing support for
dozens of events and organisations cach year |0 addition, we continued our partnership with the British Trust
for Conservation Volunteers in 2005-2006, Over the course of the year, our employees brought their skills and
enthusiasm to beneht many community environmental projects, from pathlaying by Dounreay volunteers at the
Loch of Mey loWindscale staff helping to maintain a nature reserve al Fskdale,

Freedom of Information

LIKAE A supports the principles of the Freedom of Information (FOD Act and makes every effort to comply with its
requirernents, In 2005-2006, we received 331 FOlrequests. We responded Lo 98 per cent of these within the 20-day
limit set by the Act. In six cases, the period had to be extended to receive clearance from third parties. Details of
UKAEA documents released under the FOI Act can be lfound al wawwukaeaorgak.

Our employees

Lgual apportunity - Our policy is that all employees and eligible job applicants should enjoy equal opportunity for
cmployment and advancement on the basis of their ability, qualifications, experience and suitability for the worl.
We will not discriminate on the grounds of sex, race, ethinic arigin, religion, religious belief or similar philosophical
belief, sexual arientation, trade union membership or disability. Full details of the policy statements describing
the equal opportunity framework are available for guidance to managers and employees. Monitoring of ethnicity,
disability and gender is carried out in support of our equal opportunity policy.

Fmployee commurications - Fmployee communicalions are provided via the UKAFA Intranet, which is updated
daily, and the UKALA Today newspaper, which is published ten times per year. Matters of local and corporate
interest are addressed in monthly team briciings, Various other matters are addressed during regular consultation
and discussion with local and central employee representatives. With the introduction of the MDA it is a lime of
significant change for UKALA. We have ensured that staft have been kept fully informed of our forward strateqy, and
whatilmeansfor them.The TradeUnionshavebeen consulted throughout our business ransformation programme,
and we have continued to discuss other matters of importance to staff with employee representatives.
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Organisational development and training - We recognise that the full potential of our employees will only be
realised by continually investing in their training and develapment. The UKAFA Training and Development Plan
is directly linked to the achievement of corporate objectives, Special emphasis is given to project management,
safety training, team development and people managament. Where appropriate, training and development is
linked 1o nationally recognised qualifications or the standards sel by professional bodies, UKAFA is an acoredited
Investor in People and was successfully re-assessed against the standard in Movember 2004,

improving hrealth —=\We altach grealimpaortance Lo the health of our staff and provide access Lo ocoupational health
and welfare services at each site, Stress management, smoking, alcohal and drug misuse policies are implemen ted
to safequard the health, safety and welfare of its employees.

Emplovee nurmbers - The average number of full- time equivalent amployees during the year was 2,289,

Contractors

UKAFA has led the development of a compelilive decommissioning sector in Brilain, encouraging the market 1o
injectinnovation and provide best value for the UK taxpayer. During 2005%-2006, we have continued to nourish a
healthy supply dhain by competing contracts wherever possible,

Financial review

Transfers of function

The following transfers of assets and liahilities to other organisations within the UK public sector have heen
accounted for as transfers of function in accordance with the Government Finandal Reporting Manual

a  On 1 April 2005, responsibility for the UKAEA Constabulary was transferred from UKAEA to anew independent
policy authorily, the Civil NMudear Police Autharity (CNPA), established by the Fnergy Act 2004, Cerlain assels
and liabilities and all employees of the UKALA Constabulary were transferred to the CNPA on that date,

b From 1 April 2005, financial responsibility tor the decommissioning of designated nuclear sites passed to
the MDA under the Fnergy Act 2004, UKAEAS sites al Dounreay, Harwell, Windscale and Winfrith have been
designated to the NDA and UKALA does not have financial responsibility for nuclear liabilities on these sites
or on non-UKAEA sites from that date, Nuclear liakilities amounting to £4.28bn have been derecognised
from UKALA's accounts and the majority have been transferred to the NDA who will make provision for the
liakilitics going forward.

¢ The designation of some UKAFA sites o the MDA has resulted in the risks and benefits assodated with
certain fixed assets on these sites being transterred to the NDA although legal title to the assets still remains
with UKAEA. In accordance with FRS 5 ‘Beporting the Substance of Transactions, these assets have been
derecognised from UKAFA's accounts and instead will be included in the accounts of MDA,

These lransfers have been accounted for using merger accounting as defined in FRS & ‘Acquisitions and Mergers'
and comparative figures in these accounts have been restated as if the transfer had taken place in the both the
current and preceding accounting periods. Further details of these transfers of function are included in Note 2 1o
the accounts,

NDA contract

The new contractual arrangements with the NDA came into force from 1 April 2005, The initial contract is for
a period of three years and provides for the funding of decommissioning work at UKALA sites that have been
designated o the NDA under the Fnergy Act 2004, Under the terms of the contract, cur expenditureis reimbuarsed
at cost, In addition, we are entitled to receive a fee based on the achievement of performance based incentives
{PBI) agreed in advance with the NDA, Both the reimbursement of cost and fee carmed are included in turmover in
these accounts.
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MLA infend o compete the management and operation of all sites that have been designated to them and have
recently announced their competition schedule, This schedule shows that cur current sites will net be competed
until after the current contract is due to expire and it is expected that the initial contract will be extended up 1o
the date of competition.

Post competition, the NDA will place contracts with ‘site licence companies which will be separate legal enfities
formed to be responsible for the site(s) towhich they relate. We are currently in the process of areating sitelicence
companies for our designaled sites and a transfer scheme will be used Lo ransfer assels, liabilities and employess
to the new companiesin advance of competition. The transfer scheme will also legally transfer to the MDA certain
fixend assets on the designated sites.

Operating performance

lurnaover amounted to £357.4 million (2004-2005 - £353.0 million) with funding received from the NDA replacing
grant-in-aid funding previously received from the DT The fee potentially receivable for the achicvement of
performance based incentives under the ND& contract was £12.7 million (2004-2005 - nil). The MDA fee has been
used to fund our ongoing restructuring as we change to become a more commerdally orientated organisation,
both in terms of the future competition of NDA sites and winning new business in other markets, and to fund
certain costs not recoverable from NDA& under the terms of the contract,

The MDA also set a targel of delivering 7 per cenl more value than in the original 2005-2006 Mear Term Work
Plan. Preliminary MDA-audited results indicate that we overall achieved /4 per cent savings against the total
Annual Site Funding Limit, Savings were actually higher than this but only savings which indicated pro-active
managemenlt and innovation were counted in the audit and any savings considered a windfall were discounted.
Since year end, NDA have confirmed that the seven per cent target was achieved and all staff involved in the
MDA programme will be entitled to an additional bonus, An estimate of the value of the bonus is included in
these accounts,

The operating profit for the year was S04 million (2004-2005 - loss of £'1T.8 million) and represents the balance of
fee not used to meet restructuring costs and disallowable costs, After adding the profit on disposal of an off-site
property and financing income, the net profit for the year was £3.7m 20042005 - £0.6 million).

Fixed assets

Details of the movement on fixed assets are set outin Motes 11, 12, and 13 to the accounts. As stated previously,
cerlain fixed assels on the NDA-designaled sites have been derecognised from UKAFAS accounts,

Tangible fixed assets increased by £260.0 milliom, due mainly to a revaluation surplus of £32.5 million, offset by
depredation and impairment charges and disposals. The revaluation surplus mainly related to the Harwell site

B Partof the site has been designated for housing developmentin the local coundil plan and the land has now
been valued on this basis. This resulted in a substantial increase in value from its previous valuation which
was based on agricultural land values; and

B The development of Harwell as a science and innovation campus has increased the development potential
for the site and land values have been revalued accordingly.

All purchases of fixed assets were financed in full by income received. This income is deterred and released to the
proft and loss account over the useful econamic life of the assets,

A new subsidiary company, UKALA Limited, was set up during the year as part of the restructuring of UKALA, Itis
intended that our future decormmissioning business will be conducted through this company and itis proposed
that some staff will transfer from UKALA to UKALA Ltd during 2006-200/,
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Treasury

Bank and cash balances indaeased by £15.3 million compared to the previous year. This was offsel by a decrease in
investrnents held by ALA Insurance Limited with fund managers which are now being held as bank deposits. The
balance atyear end is higher than our average cash balance asitincludes large receipts received just before year
end which had matching payments after year end.

We continued touse forward foreign exchange contracts tomitigate the risk of losses on foreign exchange During
the year, forward contracts Lo sell euros with a value of €60.5 million were placed on a compelitive basis.

Nudear liabilities estimate

Following the derccognition of nuclear liakilities on sites designated to the MDA, only liabilities relating to the
decommissioning of UKAFAS site al Culham are included in these accounts. The estimated cost of decommissioning
and environmentally restoring this siteis £160 million, in 2005-2006 money values and discounted ar 2.2 per cent
to the balance sheet date, The 20042005 estimate, restated on the same terms, was £163.2 million. Itis expected
that the Culham sile will be designated 1o the NDA alter the current fusion research programme on the site has
ended and the liabilities would then be derecognised from UKALA's accounts at that time.

In accordance with guidance from H Treasury, the rate used to discount the nudear liabilities was reduced from
3.5 per cent o 2.2 per cent, This resulted in an increase of £16.9 million in the discounted nuclear liabilities. As
these liabilities have a matching deblor, there was no impact on the profit for the year.

Taxation

The basis on which we are subject to tax from 20002007 to 2005-2006 has been agreed with HM Revenue &
Customs and is unlikely to resultin any tax liabilities being incurred for the vears up to the balance sheet date,
With effect from 1 April 2005, cortain statutory exemptions available to UKAEA were removed and this along with
the changesin the nuclear industry, will require our tax position Lo be re-addressed with HW Revenue & Cusloms.
Further details of our tax position are set outin Mote 9 to the accounts,

Pensions

Details of our pension arrangements are set out in Note 7 to the accounts.

Borrowing

The Atomic Energy Authority Act 1980 permits UKAEA to borrow from the National Loans Fund and ¢lsewhere
il the Seaelary of Stale for Trade and Industry, with HiM Treasury approval, consents. Barrowing is subject Lo
an overall limit that stood at £200 million throughout the year. There were no borrowings during the current or
previous year,

Charitable and pelitical contributions

Luring the year we made charitable contributions of £2 /1,216 (2004-2005 - £46,1 /%) tolocal charitiesin line with
our policy of supporting loecal stakeholders. Mo political contributions were made in the current or previous year.

Research and development

We carry out a wide range of research and development activities across all our programmes. The associated costs
are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred,
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External audit

The Accounting Officer and Direclors confirm that

B thereis no relevant audit infonmation of which the auditors are unaware;
B all relevant steps have been taken to ensure that they are aware of relevant audit information; and

B &l steps have been taken Lo establish that the auditors are aware of the information.

The cost of the statutory audit undertaken by the Comptroller and Auditor General was £0.1 million (2004-2005:
£0.71 million). There were no non-audit services,

Statement of payment policy and practice

UKAEA follows the CBI Prompt Payment Code. Our policy is 1o settle the lerms of payment with suppliers when
agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and o abide
by the terms of payment.,

At 371 March 2006 trade creditors were equivalent to 14 days (2005 - 18 days) purchases during the year,

Going concern

The Directors believe that the contractual arrangements with the NDA for the funding ol UKAF &'s decommissioning
programme, the continuing commitment of both UK and Lurope to fusion research, and the D11's acceptance of
responsibility for costs assodated with specified UKAEA liabilities are sufficient to support continuing operations
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Direclars continue 1o adopl the going concern basis in preparing
the accounts.

Key performance measures

UKAE A is commilted to being best in class and Lo achieve this we must achieve excellent results in delivering our
wiork plans and maintain or improwve performance against the key enabling measures included in the corporate
and site plans,

Details of the performance measures and the cutturns for the year are set out below,

Delivery measure

This measure shows performance against Performance Based Incentives (PBIs) for the NDA related programme
{20 per cent) and the delivery of Fusion key milestones (20 per cent)h, Under contractwith the MDA, we have agreed
anumber of PEls thal will measure performance in delivering the site programmes. The polential fee that we can
earn from the MUOA contract depends on the performance against these PBls. The Fusion key milestones define the
successiul delivery of the 2005-2006 pragramme.

The outcome for 2005- 200615 yet to be confirmed, butis expected to be in the range 3.27 per cent to4.52 per cent
(2004-2005: 4.34 per cenl), against a largel range of 0 per cent Lo 5 per cenl.

Safety performance index

This index promotes a positive safety culture and aims to reduce deviations from good safety practice, It includes
the following elements: the number of health, safety and environmental events recarded in the Unusual
Cccurrence Record system; the aggregate score for the licen sed sites under the International Safety Rating System;
the percentage completion of safety maintenance plans;, and the percentage of health, safety and environment
invesligations dosed out and audil programmes under laken,

The outcome for 2005 - 2006 was 56,8 (2004-2005: 43,9 against a target range of 0 to 60,
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Environmental performance measure

This measure promoles continuous improvermnents in enviranmental performance. The measure comprises of an
environmental performance improvement plan with specific targets and milestones including those appropriate
to the implementation of the Muclear Sector Plan,

The outcome for 2005-2006 was the achievement of 100 per cent (2004-2004: 988 per cent) of the milestones
against a target range of 92 per cent o 97 por cent.

Media performance measure

The purpose of this measure is to improve UKALA's public image and its impact on the public acceptability of
UKAEAS work programimes. The measure assesses the balance between good and bad media coverage. The
assessment is carried oul by an external media tracking company, with trained analysts assessing the favourability
of press and broadcast articles relating to UKALA on a percentage scale of 00 to 100 per cent. A broadly balanced
article receives a favourability rating of 50 per cent, with higher scores being more favourable and lower scores
less. The scores are weighled according to the droulation or audience numbers for the newspaper or broadcast
programme concerned, thereby reflecting the impact on public awareness.

The outcome for 2005-20006 was 50,/ per cent (2004-2005: 51.5 per cent) against a target range of 48 per cent to
S0 per cent.
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Board of Directors

Barbara Thomas Judge (59), Chairman - appointed o the Board on 1 September 2002 and appointed Chairman
on 1 May 2004, Sheis Chairman of the School of Oriental and African Studies, Deputy Chairman of the Financial
Reporting Coundl and Friends Provident plc and a Mon Excoutive Director of several other public and private
companies. She has had a successiul career in international banking and finandal requlation during which she
held several senior positions that included Director at News |nternational, Board Director ar Samuel Montagu & Co
and LIS Securities Exchange Commissioner,

Dipesh Shah (53), Chief Executive and Accounting Officer - appointed Chief Executive Officer and Accounting
Officer on 15 Novernber 2003, He is Non-Fxeculive Chairman of Viridian Group PLC, a NonFxeculive Director of
Babcock International Group plc and a Mon-Lxecutive Director of the Oxfordshire Lconomic Partnership. He was
previously at BP ple, latterly asVice President and General Manager, Acquisitions and Divestroents and formerly as
Chiel Executive of several businesses within BP ple. He is also a past member of DTIs Renewabile Energy Advisory
Committee and a past Chairman of the Luropean Photovoltaic Industry Assodation.

Colin Bayliss (568), Director, Major Projecls and Fngineering Division - joined UKAEA in August 1997 and was
appointed to the Board on 1 February 2002, He is a Mon-Executive Director on the Cogent Sector Skills Council, He
has worked on major projects for a number of engineering consultancies and contractors and was Fngineering
Lirector for the Channel Tunnel main contractor, Iransmanche Link, during the last two years of its construction.
Most recently, he was Technical and Engineering Director for UK Mires Lid,

Morman Harrison (54}, Qirector, Dounreay Division - joined UKALA and appointed to theBoard on 1 November 2003,
He previously worked for British Energy plc as Sizewell B Station Director, He has worked in the power industry for
28 years, initially working al conventional power stalions, before moving inlo nuclear plant in 1980,

Andrew lackson (55), Chief Financial Offfcer - joined UKAFA and was appointed Lo the Board on 1 Seplember 2005,
He has held a number of senior positions in the construction Industry, most recently as Finance Director of the
Uitility Services Division at Alfred McAlpine where he also held several senior inance exeoutive positions as the
group expanded beyond its traditional construction markets, Previously hewas Chiel Financial Officer and Director
at Bovis International and Finance Director at Norwest Holst Construction Lid.

John Kennedy (56), Non-Fxecutive Director - appointed to the Board on 1 June 2005, He is Chairman of twa leading
businesszes, Vetco Internation al and Wellstream International, which provide high quality engineering products for
oil and gas production. Previously he held several senior positions at the Halliburten Company, his last role being
Lxecutive Vice President.

Mark Slaughter (51), Non-Execilive Director - Appointed Lo the UKAFA Board on 5 April 2005, He is Managing
Llirector/Chief Operating Officer - Investment Banking at Citigroup. A qualified nudear physicst, Mr Slaughter
started his carcer at\Westinghouse (Bettis Atomic Power Laboratory) in 1279 before becoming a lawyer with major
Mew York law firm Cravath, Swain and Moore in 1984, He joined Goldman Sachs International in 1986 and became
the company s Chief Operating Officer in 2000, He held thisposition until he joined Citigroup in 2004,

Ken Vowles OBL (53), Mon-Lxecutive Lirector — appointed to the UKALA Board on 1 May 2002, He serves as an
advisor to the Performance and Innovation Unit (PILD on renewable energy to the DTS Energy Advisory Pang
and is amember of the Advisory Commitles on Business and the Frivironment. He is a Non-Executive Director of
Cegelec and a Professor at Herriot-Wart University, Ldinburgh. He was formerly Lxecutive Director International at
Scottish Power ple and played a significant role in the development of the company in helping change it from a
public utility 1o a successful mulli-national,

Arnold Wagner OBE (56), Mon Executive Director - appointed to the Board on 1 May 2006, He is Director, Hurman
Resources at Smiths Group plc. He was formerly Director of Group Personnel at the support services group, Bunzl
ple, and prior to that Director of Personng and Administration for the Sdentific Equipment Division of Fisons plc
He is a former Chair of Governors al JFS Schoaol and led the largest single school PRl project in the UK.
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Statement of Directors’and Accounting Officer’s responsibilities

Section 4(3) of the Alomic Fnergy Authority Act 1954 and Directions issued by HM Treasury require the Directors,
acting as the UKALA Board, to prepare accounts for each financial year in the form and on the basis determined by
HM Treasury, The accounts must show a true and fair view of the state of affairs of UKAEA and the Group as at the
end of the finandal year and of the Group profit or loss for that periad.

In preparing the accounts, the Directors and Accounting Officer are required to

B observe al relevant accounting and disdosure requirements as sel oot in the Accounts Direction issued by
HIA Treasury: and, within that, select suitable accounting polidies and apply them on a consistent basis;

B make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

B slale whether applicable accounting standards have been followed and disdose and explain any material
departuresin the accounts; and

B prepare the accounts on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that UKAEA will
conlinue in cperation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of UKAEA and hence Tor Laking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Chiel Executive is the Accounting Officer for UKAEA. His responsibililies as Accounting Officer, induding his
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the public inances for which heisanswerable and for the keeping
of proper records are set outin aletter of appointment from the DT Permanent Secretary and the accompanying
Accounting Officer Memorandum.
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Corporate governance

UKAEA has a policy of seeking Lo comply with established best practice in the figld of corporale governance,
insofar asit applies to UKALA, and has adopted core values and standardswhich set out the behaviours expected
of staffin their dealings with stakeholders, customers, colleagues and suppliers.

The Board

UKAEA is controlled through its Board of Directors who are appointed by the Department of Trade and Industry
(DT The Board’s main role is to establish UKAEA'S vision, mission and values, set strategy and structure, and
exercise accountability to UKAFA's stakeholders. The Directars who served throughout the year unless otherwise
stated are set out below,

Chairman

Barbara Thomas Judge

Executive Directors

Dipesh Shah, Chict Executive

Colin Bayliss

MNorman Harrison

Andrew Jadeson (appointed to the Board on 1 September 2005)
Paul White (retired on 29 lune 2005)

Non-Executive Directors

Rosemary Day (retired from the Board on 31 March 2006)

lobin Kennedy (appaointed Lo the Board on 1 June 2005)

lohn Macpherson (retired from the Board on 31 October 2005)
Mark Slaughter (appointed to the Board on 5 April 2005)

Ken Vowles

Alan Young {retired from the Board on 31 March 2006)

Arnold Wagner (appointed to the Board on 1 May 2008)

Biographical details of the Directors are incduded on page 18, The responsibilities of the Directors are included
on page 19,

The Board, which meets atleast cight times ayear, has aschedule of mattersreserved forits approval, This includes:
establishing the overall strategic direction of UKALA within the policy and resources framework agreed with the
responsible Government Minister, reviewing UKAEAS corporate objectives and goals; approving the annual
accounts, budget and corporate plan; ensuring that high standards of corporate governance are observed al all
times; and reviewing the safety, environmental and security performance of UKALA.

The Board delegales responsibility for day-to-day and business management control to the Chiel Fxecutive, whao
iz assisted by the Lxecutive Directors and other key senior managers, comprising the Lxecutive Committee, The
Excoutive Committes meets every two wecks, Spedfic responsibilities delegated to the Exccutive Committee
include: development of UKAEA performance measures; implementation of the strategies and polides as
determined by the Board; monitoring of the operating and financial results against plans and budgets; and
developing and implementing risk management systems.
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The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board, Barbara Thomas Judge and the Chiel Executive,

Dipesh Shah, is dearly defined and has been approved by the Board.

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its strategy and in the achieverment of its objectives. The
Chairman's objectives are set outin a letter from the D11 Shareholder Executive. The Chairman has noinvolvement
in the day to day business of UKAEA,

The Chief Lxecutive has direct charge of UKALA on a day to day basis and is accountable to the Board for the
financial and operational performance of the Group, The Chiel Fxeculive is also the UKAFA Accounting Officer
and is responsible to Parliament through the Committee of Public Accounts for the stewardship of resources,
His responsibilities are set out in a letter from the DT Permanent Secretary and the accompanying Accounting
Officer Memaorandum. The Accounting Officer has a personal responsibility for the propriety and regularity of
the public inances for which he is answerable; for the keeping of proper accounts; for prudent and economical
administration; for the avoidance of waste and extravagance and for the efficient and effective use of all available
resources, Heis alsoresponsible for Laking formal action il the UKAFA Board is contemplating a course that would
infringe these requirements.

Directors and Directors’independence

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, four Fxeculive Direclors and lour independent Non-Execulive
Directors. The Mon-Lxwecutive LDirectors constructively challenge and help develop proposals on srategy,
and bring strong, independent judgment, knowledge and experience to the Board's deiberations, The
independent Direclors are of suffident calibre and number that their views carry significant weight in the Board's
decision making.

The Board considers all its Mon-Lxecutive Directors fo be independent in character and judgement. No
Mon Executive Director

B has been an employee of the UKAFA within the last five years;
has, or has had within the last three years, a material business relationship with the Group;
receives remuneration other than a Director's fee;

has dose family lies with any of the UKAEAS advisers, Direclors or senior employees;

holds cross-directorships or has significant linkswith other Directors through involvernentin other companies
or bodies; or

has served on the board for more than nine years.
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Board Committess

The number of [ull Board meelings and commilleg meelings allended by each Director during the year was
as follows

Board  Reruneration Audit

Committes Committes

Barbara Thomas Judge 8 (8) 4(5) {
Dipesh Shah 2(8) [} 0
Colin Bayliss H(H) ] 0
Morman Harrisan H(H) ] 0
Andrew lackson & (R) 0 {
PaulWhite 20(2) 0 0
Rosemary Day )] 55) E1E1]
John Kennedy 50N 3 2(3)
John Macpherson 401) 404) 11
idark Slaughter & (7 i 3(3
Ken Vowles 7(8) 4(5) 1{3)
Alan Young S H) Sk 2D
Arnold Wagner 0 0 0

Figure in brackets indicate maximum number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Board member.

Remuneration Committee

During the year the Bemuneration Committes comprised Barbara Thomas Judge Bosemary Day, John Kennedy,
John Macpherson, Mark Slaughter, Ken Yowles and Alan Young, Amold Wagner joined the Committes aller
the year end and replaced Roscmary Day as Chairman of the Committes, All maembers of the Committee were
independent Non-Fxeculive Direclors, The Remuneration Commiltee mel five times during the year. When
necessary, non-commirtee members were invited to artend.

The Commilles’s prindpal responsibility is o make recommendations o the DT on the level of Direclors
remuneration. In addition the Commirttee regularly reviews the UKALA's remuneration policy in relation to

B itscompetitors and industry norms
B compensation commitrent; and

B contract periods.

As the members of the UKALA Board are appointed by the D11, UKALA does not maintain a nominations committes,

Audit Committee

During the year the Audit Commilles comprised Rosemary Day, lohn Kennedy, lohn Macpherson, Mark Slaughiter,
Ken Yowles and Alan Young. Arnold Wagner joined the Committee after the year end. The Committeais chaired by
Mark Slaughter, All members of the Committee were independent Non Excoutive Directors. The Audit Committee
mel three limes during the year.

The Committes has at least one member possessing what the Smith Beport desaribes as recent and relevant
experience. |Lwill be seen from the direclors’ biographical details, appearing on page 15, that the other members of
the Committee bring toita wide range of experience from positions at the highest level both in the UK and the USA,

Under its terms of reference, the Committee is responsible for: monitoring the effectiveness of the external audit
process and approving the temms of engagement and remuneration of the external auditor: endorsing the UEAEA's
palicy on the provision of non-audit services by the external auditon monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness
of theinternal audit programme; reviewing the actions and judgements of management in relation to annual and
other finandal statements betore subimission to the UKAEA Board; and reviewing annually the systems of internal
control and the processes for manitoring and evaluating the risks facing UKAERA,
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Statement on Internal Control

Scope of responsibility

The Accounting Officer is responsible for maintaining a sound systam of internal control that supports the
achievermen! of UKAFA' policies, aims and objectives, whilst safequarding the public funds and assets for which
heis personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in Government Accounting.
Heis assisted in this by the Chicf Financial Officer.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve polices, aims and objeclives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness,

The system of inlernal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and pricritise the risks o the
achievement of UKALA's policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and
the impact should they be realised; and to manage them effidently, effectively and econamically. The system of
internal control has been in place in UKALA for the year ended 31 March 2006 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and accounts, and accords with HM Treasury guidance,

Capacity to handle risk

The Board has delegaled day-to-day responsibility for risk management Lo the Fxecutive Commillee and each
member of the Committee is responsible for ensuring that a sound system of risk management isin placein the
Divisions that they represent,

The risk and control framework

Each Division is responsible for the identification and evaluation of key risks applicable to their arcas of business
together with the design and operation of suitable internal controls. These risks are recorded in risk registers
which identify the probability of those risks occurring, their impactif they do occur and the actions being taken o
manage those rsks to the desired lewvel.

Business reports are prepared by UKAEA sites focusing on the following arcas

B keyrisksto the achievement of business obhjectives;
B progress against key performance indicators;

B milestone sumimary; and

B progress of programme against budgel.

These reports are subimitted monthly to the Excoutive Committec, A guarterly surmimary report is produced for the
Board which indudes the top ten risks to UKAFA.
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Review of effectiveness

The Accounting Officer is responsible for reviewing the effecliveness of the system of intemnal control. Hisreview of
the effectiveness of the systemn of internal control isinformed by the work of theinternal auditors and the executive
managers within UKAEA who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal contraol
framewaork, and comments made by the exlernal auditors in their management letter and other reports. He has
been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
by the Board and the Audit Committes and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the syslem is in place.

LIKAE A has aninternal audil departmentwhich eperates in accordance with Government Internal Audil Standards
and an Audit Charter approved by the Audit Committea, The work of the internal audit department is determined
by analysis of the risks to which UKAEA s exposed. The annual internal audit programimeis based on this analysis.
The Head ol Internal Audit provides the Accounting Officer with regular repor s on internal audit activity in UKAEA.
These reports include the Head of Internal Audit’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
LIKAE A's system of internal contrel,

LDuring the year, some liquid waste escaped onto the floor of a shielded cell in the Dounreay Cementation Plant.
It was detected pramptly and the fadlity was shut down immediately, Monitering systems confirmed that the
spillage was contained in the cell, in accordance with its design function, ensuring there was no harm to employees
of the environment, Aninvestigation into the inddentrevealed some internal control weaknesses in the operation
of the facility and these have now been addressed and a recovery plan has been implemented. A review of other
UKALA sites confirmed that there were no similar internal control weaknesses,

Aparl from the inddent at the Dounreay Cementalion Plant, there were no material internal control issues
identified during the year.

Dipesh Shal 28 June 2006
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer



Urdted Kingdern Atamic Enargy Suthanity Accounts 2005-2006

a2

Remuneration report

UKAEA applies the Prindples of Good Governance relating lo Direclors’remuneration ta the extent that they are
appropriate to UKALA. The prindpal implementation arrangements are set out below,

Remuneration policy

The remuneration of Dircctors is set by the Secctary of State for Trade and Industry with the approval of
HM Treasury in accordance with the Alomic Energy Autheority Act 1954, The UKAEA Remuneration Commillee
makes recommendations to the Department of Trade and Industry (OT1) on the overall remuneration package for
Fxecutive Direclors. The Non-Fxecutive Direclors whao form the Commillee are not involved in dedsions relaling
to their own remuneration,

In reaching its recommendations, the Commitlee hasregard to the following considerations

B the need to recruit, refain and mofivate suitably able and qualified people to exercize their different
responsibilities;

B regional/local variationsin labour markets and their effects on the recruitment and retention of staff; and

B the funding available to the UKAEA.

The Committee takes account of the evidence it receives about wider economic considerations and the afford ability
of its recommendations,

Service contracts
Dlirectors are appointed by the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry for a three year term that may be renewed
Upon expiry,

Larly termination of Lxecutive Directors confracts, other than for misconduct, would resultin the Director receiving
compensation as set out in UKAEAS Conditions of Employment. These conditions apply to all UKAEA employees
and the compensation payment would be calculated on the basis of age and length of service at the effective date
of termination and expressed as a number of weeks' pay. For these purposes, length of service is calculated from
when the Directors joined UKAFA and not from when they were appointed Lo the Board. Non-Frecutive Direclors
are not entitled to compensation for early termination of their contracts.

Remuneration and pension entitlements

The individual components of the remuneration packages are

Salary and fees

Excoutive Directors receive a basic salary whidh is reviewed annually and increased to take account of inflation if
appropriale. The Chairman and Non-Fxeculive Direclors receive fees for their services,

Benefits
Lxeautive Directors are entitled to certain benefts under the terms of their service contracts. These prindipally
comprise a company car, private health care, expense allowances and accommodation benchts,

All Directors are also reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in line with the policy for UKAEAs amployees.
These reimbursements are nol induded in the table bBelow.
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Performance related bonuses

These are calculated in accordance with fixed formulae that are agreed each year with the D11 on the basis of
recommendations from the Remuneration Committes, The total bonus is made up of two components: the
performance ol UKAFA against spedhc quantified targets (see pages 13 and 14), and the performance of the sites
or divisions for which Directors have responsibility against specific Divisional targets, The performance related
bonuses tor 2005 2006 shown in the table below are an estimate of the amounts which may be payable, The final
amounts payable will be subject Lo approval by the DTL.

Individual Directors’ remuneration for the year is shown in the table below (whidh is subject to audit)

Salary/ 2006 Ay
Faes Benelils Bonus Total Tostaal
£ £ £ £ £
Chairman
Barbara Thomas Judge 0,000 V] 0 60,000 L, 250
Executive Directors
Dipesh Shah 174,963 75,258 20,329 277550 264,964
Colin Bayliss 100,128 A 19415 129,278 120,564
Stan Gordelier (resigned 17/01/05) i 0 { 0 102,716
Morman Harrison 120,883 51,908 23439 196,230 186,214
Andrew Jackson (appointed 07,/09/05) H/.500 H959 164966 112425 0
Paul While (retired on 29/06/05) 31,187 2,066 5219 38,472 134,934
MNon-Executive Directors
Rosemary Day 15,000 0 0 15,000 15,000
lohn Kennedy (appointed 071/06/05) 20,833 0 { 20,833 {
John Macpherson {resigned 31/10/05) 8,750 0 0 8,750 15,000
iark Slaughter (appointed 05/04/05) 24,722 0 { 24,722 {
Denis Tunnicliffe (resigned 30/04/04) 0 0 0 0 5800
Ken Vowles 149,166 0 0 19,166 RN
Alan Young 15,000 0 0 15,000 15,000

678,132 147,926 Q2,368 918,426 238,153

Pensions paid to former Directors 4,323 4,194

922,749 942,34/

Pension entitlements

Exeoutive Directors other than the Chief Executive are members of the UKAEA Combined Pension Scheme that
pays an annual pension based on pensionable final earnings together with a lump sum of three limes the pension
at normal retirement age. Benefits are also payable in the event of death or ill health retirement.

The Chiel Fxeculive has an unfunded pension arrangement providing a pension based on pensionable hinal
earnings, and a death in service only beneft scheme providing a lump sum of four times basic salary. The Director,
Dounreay also has anunfunded pension arrangement to take account of pensionable pay above the carnings cap
intraduced by the Finance Act 1982, which is refllected in his pension entitlerments in the Lable below,

Further details of the pension schemes and unfunded pensions can be found at Note 7 to the accounts.

The pension entitlerments shown in the table below fwhichis subject to audit) are those that would be paid annually
on relirement based on service to 31 March 2008 and include the value of added years paid for by Directors.
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Accrued Lumip Increase Increase Accrued Lump

prension sum  inaccrued in lurnp pension sum

2005 2005 pension SLIm 2006 2006

f § § § 3 £

Dipesh Shah 7,750 0 6,004 0 13,844 0
Colin Bayliss 23,937 71,812 2,655 7.965 26,592 79,777
Morman Harrison 44113 132,340 3023 9,068 47,136 141,408
Andrew Jackson (appointed 07/09/05) 0 0 2,965 H RS 2,965 BB96
Paul White (retired 29/06/05) 29,276 BT E2Q LE7 1.669 ] 0

105,078 291,981 15,294 27,598 90,537 230,081

The following table (which is subject to audil) sets oul the ransfer value of the Direclors” accrued pension
enftitlements consistent with Actuarial Guidance Note GN'T1. The transfer values do not represent sums paid or
pavable to the Directors but represent a potential liability of the pension scheme or UKAEA.

Iransfer Increass Transfer

value Chreclors’ nel of value

2005 contributions  contributions 2006

¥ i i £

Dipesh Shah 176,214 0 152,770 328,984
Colin Bayliss 390,999 15,019 25,332 431,350
Marman Harrison 752013 5,280 56,649 813,942
Andrew Jackson (appointed 07/09/05) 0 3,080 48,257 51,331
Paul White (retired 29/06/045) SRR 2414 H 22 0
1,866,563 25,798 291,024 1,625,607

idembers of the pension scheme have the oplion lo pay Additional Voluntary Contributions; neither the
contributions nor the resulting benefits are induded in the above tables,

On behalf of the Board

Arnold Wagner
28 lune 2006
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The Certificate and Report of the Comptroller and Auditor
General to the Houses of Parliament

| certify that | have audited the hinandal statements of the United Kingdom Atomic Fnergy Authaority for the
year ended 31 March 2006 under the Atomic Energy Authority Act 1954, These comprise the Consolidared Proht
and Loss Account, the Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Balance Sheets, the
Consalidated Cashflow Staterment and the related notes. These inandal statements have been prepared under
the accounting polides set out within them.

Respective responsibilities of Directors, the Accounting Officer and auditor

The Directors and Accounting fficer are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Remuneration Reporl
and the iinancial statementsin accordance with the Atomic Lnergy Authority Act 1954 and HM Treasury directions
made thereunder and for ensuring the regularity of hinandal ransactions. These responsibilities are setoutin the
Statermnent of Directors and Accounting Officer s Respansibilities,

My responsibility is to audil the hinandal statementsin accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements,
and with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

Ireport Lo you my opinion as lo whether the inancial staterments give a true and fair view and whether the finandial
statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Atomic Energy Authority Act 1954 and HW Treasury directions made thereunder, | also reportwhether in
all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliarment and
the financial ransactions conform to the authorities which govern them. | also report to you if, in my opinion, the
Annual Report is nat consistent with the finandal statements, if United Kingdom Atomic Frnergy Autharity has nat
keptproper accounting records, it | have not received all the information and explanations| require for my audit, or
if information spedfied by relevant authoritices regarding remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

I review whether the statement on pages 21 and 22 reflects the Authority’s compliance with Hi Treasury’s
guidance on the Statement on Internal Control, and | report if it does not | am not required to consider whether
the Accounting Officer’s stalements on inlernal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of Authority's corporate governance procedures or itsrisk and control procedures,

Iread the other information contained in the Annual Reportand consider whetherit is consistent with the audited
finandal staterments. This other information comprises only the Chairman's Statement, the Chief Exeoutive’s revicw,
Board ol Directors, Corporate Governance, Management Commentary, and the unaudited partofthe Remuneration
Report. | consider the implications for my report if | become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the inandal statements, My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

| conducted my auditin accordancewith Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. My audit indudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant Lo the amounts, disdosures and
regularity of financial transactionsincuded in the inancial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to
be audited. It also incdudes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors and
Accounting Officer in the preparation of the finandal staternents, and of whether the accounting paolicies are most
appropriate to the Authority ‘s drcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

Iplanned and performed my audit so as to oblain all the information and explanationswhich | considered necessary
in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the finandal statements and the
parl of the Remuneration Reporl Lo be audited are free from material misstaterment, whether caused by raud or
error and thatin all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposesintended by
Farliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In forming my opinion |
also evalualed the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the inandal statements and the part of
the Remuneration Report to be audited,
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Opinion
Iry rmy opinian

B the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with the Atomic Lnergy Authority Act 1954
and HM Treasury directions made thereunder, of the state of the United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority's
affairs as al 31 March 2008 and of ils profit for the year then ended;

B thehnandal stalements and the part of the Remuneration Report Lo be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Atomic Energy Authority Act 1954 and HM Treasury directions made thereunder;
and

B inallmaterial respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament
and the inandal transactions conform to the authoritics which govern them.

| have no observations o make on these financial staterments,

fohu Bourn Mational Audit Office

Comprroller and Auditor General 157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

18 July 2006 Landon SWIW 95P
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Consolidated profitand loss account for the year ended
31 March 2006

2006 2005
Metas £m fm

Iurnowver 1 614 1510
Change in work in progress (2.5) (0.3)
Other operating incame A7 3.7

363.6 3564
Raw materials and consumables 43.5 82
Other external charges 173.7 1827
Staff costs 1 121.9 1274
Depredation, amer lisation and impairment of fixed assels 6.0 34
Other operating charges 18.1 0.5

363.2 3582
Operating profit/{loss) 5 0.4 {1.5)
Frofit/(loss) on disposal of ixed assets 0.4 (0.2}
Profitf{loss) on ordinary activities before financing 0.8 (2.0)
Incorme from investmenls 0 0.5
Interest receivable 1.8 21
Motional cost of capital (2.7) (2.3)
Crther net inandng charges H (0.5) 0
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 0.4 (1.7
lax on proft/{loss) on ordinary activities 49 0 0
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 0.4 (1.7
Reversal of notional cost of capital 2.7 23
Profit for the year 23 3.1 0.6

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of ransfer of function (see Mote 2).
All amounts derive from continuing operations.

The related notes numbered T to 28 form part of these accounts,
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 March 2006

2006 2005

Motas £m frm

Proft for the year EN | 0.6
Unrealised gain/{dehdt) on revaluation of properties 12 32.5 (1.7
Total recognised gains/{losses) relating to the year 35.86 (1.1

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of transfer of function (see Note 2.

The related noles numbered T lo 28 formpart of these accounts,
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Balance sheets at 31 March 2006

Group Group UKAEA LIKAEA
2006 20041 2006 2005
Motes £m £m £m £m
Assets employed
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 11 0.8 1.3 0.8 1.3
Tangible assets 12 105.2 8.7 105.3 8.7
Investments 13 1] 0 2.0 3.0
106.1 80.0 109.1 83.0
Current assets
Stocks and work in progress 14 4.7 7.1 4.7 rA
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year T4 20.3 510 21.6 ER
Debtors: amounts falling due aflter more than one year 15 323 337 32.3 337
Mudear liability debstor 15 160.0 138.7 160.0 138.7
lnvesanents 16 0 10.8 0 0
Cash al bank and in hand 104.8 89.5 93.2 859.2
3921 M2R IR1.B 33/
L ess:
Creditors: amounts falling due within oneyear 17 151.2 124.5 151.2 124.5
Met current assets 240.9 218.3 230.6 2072
Total assets less current liahilities 347.0 2498.3 319.7 2402
L ess:
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year - 18 25.5 30,7 25.5 307
Deferred income 20 12.6 16.6 12.6 16.6
Mudear liahilities 21 160.0 138,/ 160.0 138.7
Other provisions for liabilities and charges 22 48.7 47.7 47.5 46.3
Total assets less liabilities 100.2 4.0 94.1 57.9
Reserves
General reserve 23 B6.B HA6E B6.B HOLE
Revaluation reserve 23 9.2 12.0 9.2 12.0
Investmenl revalualion reserve 23 59.0 4.3 59.0 4.3
Profit and loss account 23 (54.8) (58.5) (60.9) (065.2)
Total Government funds 100.2 B4.6 24,1 hi4

1 Comparative igures restated as aresult of transfer of funclion (see Note 2.

The accounts were signed on behalf of the Directors of UKAEA on 28 June 2006,

Lipesh Shah Andrew fackson
Chief Executive and Accounting Officer Chief Finandal Officer

fhe related notes numbered T to 28 torm part of these accounts,
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended
31 March 2006

2006 2006 2005" 2005'
Mortes Em £m fm frm
MNet cash inflow from operating activities 0.4 EER
MNet cash inflow frem returns on investments
and servicing of finance
Investment income 0 05
Interest received 2.8 2.8 2.1 2.0
MNet cash inflow from capital expenditure
and financial investment
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 11 0 {0.4)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 12 (0.6) (5.1
Disposal of tangible fixed assers 1.4 2.0
Capital grants received 20 0.5 1.3 4.1 0.7
MNet cash inflow/{outflow) from
management of liquid resources
Withdrawal from/(investment in) short term deposits 10.8 (00.6)

Increase in cash 15.3 36.5

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of transfer of function (see Note 2).

fhe refated notes numbered 1 to 28 torm part of these accounts,
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Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash inflow from operating activities

2006 2005
Metas £m fm
Cperating profit/{loss) 0.4 {1.8)
Amaortisation of intangible fixed assets 11 0.5 1.3
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets 12 55 34
Capital grants released 20 i4.5) (3.3)
Decreasein stocks and work in progress 2.4 0.2
{ncrease)/decrease in debtors (27.8) a.8
Increase in creditors 21.5 25,0
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 2.2 ((L.K)
MNet cash inflow from operating activities 0.4 338
1 Comparative igures restated as aresult of transfer of funclion (see Note 2.
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
2006 A0S
£m £m
Increase in cash in the year 15.3 i6h
Cash (inflow) outflow from managament of liquid resources (10.8) 0.0
Change in net funds 4.5 37
Met funds at 1 April 2005 100.3 631.2
MNet funds at 31 March 2008 104.8 100.3
Analysis of net funds
At 1 April Cash At 21 March
2005 Flowes 2006
fm fm Em
Current assetinvestiments 10.8 {10.8) 0
Cash at bank and in hand HY.4h 15.3 104.8
00,3 a5 104.8

The related notes numbered T 1o 28 Torm part of these accounis,
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2006

1 Principal accounting policies

The accounts comply with the provisions of the Atomic Energy Authority Act 1954 (Section 4(3)) and the
Hivi Treasury Accounts Direclion. The latter requires the accounts to be prepared in accordance with

i the Companies Act 1985;
i generally accepted accounting prindples in the UK (UK GAAF); and

i the accounting and disdosure requiraments of ‘Government Accounting” and the ‘Government Financial
Reporling Manual’;

insofar as these are appropriate to UKALA. The Accounts Direction requires the following departures from the
Companies Act and accounting standard requiraments

i the note on historical cost proft and losses required under FRS 3 Beporting Financial Performance’ has
nol been disclosed; and

i the historical cost information regarding assets incuded atvaluation as required by paragraph 33(3) of
Schedule 4 1o the Companies Act 1985 has not been disdosed.

The disclosure exermptions permitted by the Companies Act do not apply to UKALA unless specifically approved
by H Treasury.

1.1 Basis of accounting

These accountshavebeenprepared on the going concern basis, asUKALA willremaininbeing asanon-departmental
public body, Future funding arrangements are expected to be suffident to support UKAEA'S continuing operations
foor the loreseeable future.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation
of certain tangible fixed assets.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of lolal recognised gains and losses,
consolidated balance sheet and consaolidated cash flow statement include the accounts of UKALA and of its
subsidiary undertakings for the yvear ended 31 March 2006, Intra-group transactions and profits are climinated
on cansalidation,

1.3 intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets comprise purchased software licences and are valued at cost, net of amortisation and
impairment, or depreciated replacement cost where materially different,

The cost or valuation of intangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, is amortised on a straight-line
basis over a period up Lo iive years. Provision is made for any impairmentl.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets

Spedalised buildings and plant and equipment are valued at cost, net of depreciation and impairment, or
depredated replacement cost where materially different.

Mon-spedalised land and buildings and the land on which spedalised buildings stand are valued al open market
value for existing use. Independent, professionally qualified wvaluers make full valuations at least every five
years and, in the intervening years, these valuations are updated by UKAEA with the assistance of independent
professional advice as required.
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Invesmment properties are revalued annually and no deprediation is provided. [ he requirement of the Companies
Act 1985 is to depreciate all properties, but that requirement canflicts with the generally accepted accounting
principles set out in S5AP 149 *Accounting for Investment Properties” UKALA considers that to depreciate such
propertics would not give a true and fair view, but that a true and fair view is given by following S5AF 19,
Depredation is only one of many factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount that might otherwise
have been induded cannot be separately identified or quantified,

Surplus properlies are revalued annually and no depredation is provided. UKAEA does notl consider it appropriale
to depreciate surplus properies on a formal basis since they are not being used for operational purposes and any
depredation or impainment of the properties will be reflected in the annual revaluation.

surpluses arising from the valuations of propertics are taken direct to a revaluation reserve, Any deficit arising from
the valuation of properties is laken direct Lo arevaluation reserve 1o the extent that such deficits are regarded as
tempaorary. Where impairment in value of an individual property is identified, the deficit is eliminated against
any revaluation reserve in respect of that property, with any excess being charged to the profit and loss account.
Any subsequent surplus in valuation will be aedited 1o the profit and loss account Lo the extent of the amount
previously charged. Valuation surpluses realised on sale are transferred from the revaluation reserve to the profit
and loss reserve,

Depreciation is calculated 50 as to write off the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets less their estimated
residual values, on a straight-ine basis over the expecled economic lives of the assels concerned. The prindpal
annual rates used for this purpose are

Freshold land not depreciated
Buildings Lp to 40 years
Invesament propertics ot depreciated
Surplus proper ies nol depreciated
Flant and equipment up to 10 years

1.5  Twrnowver

Turnover represents the lotal value, exduding VAT and intra-group sales, of products delivered and services
rendered to customers, grant-in-aid and the value of long term contract work completed during the year.

Income received relating te the purchase of fixed assels is reated as deferred income and released 1o the profit
and loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned,

1.6 Nuclear liabiities

Full provision is made for nuclear liabilities on sites not designated to the NDA under the Lnergy Act 2004,
Changesin the liabkilities estimate are accounted for in the vear in which they arise. Provision is made on the basis
of the current best estimate which is reviewed annually (see Note 21). As the management of these liabilities is
the prindpal activity of the Graup, the costs and turnover associated with the current year work programme are
included in the proht and lass account.

The provision is expressed at courrent price levels and discounted at 2.2 por cent areal rate of interest specficd by
Hiv Treasury, Lo take account of the long timescale over which work will be carried out. The financing charges in
the profit and loss account indude the adjustments to amortise one year's discount and restate the liabilities to
aurrent price levels,

A letter issued by the then Secretary of State for Lnergy in 1986 stated that the Government was prepared to
conlinue te accep! responsibility in prindple for those costs which UKAEA inours in treating and disposing of
nuclear wastes and in decormmissioning plant arising from

i programmes carried oul by UKAEA and its predecessors prior to 1 April 1986; and

i programme agreementwork undertaken for the Department of Trade and Industry (D11) and its predecessors
after T April 1986,
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These assurances were reconfirmed by the DI1in June 1996, On the basis of these assurances, a debtor isinduded
in the balance sheel. The provision and debtor are identified separately.

1./ Operating leases

Costsin respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-ine basis over the lease rerm.

1.8 Stocks and work in progress, excluding fong-term contracts

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Work in progress is valued at cost, less the cost
of work involced on incomplete contracts and less foresecable losses, Cost means direct cost plus production
overheads. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks.

1.9 Taxation

laxation is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheel date. A nel deferred Lax assel is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis
of all available evidence, it can be regarded asmore likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted., Deferred tax is measured at the
average Lax rales thal are expected Lo apply in the perads in which timing differences are expected to reverse on
anon-discounted basis,

110 fnsurance

UKALA insures most non-nuclear risks through itswholly owned subsidiary ALA Insurance Limited, This subsidiary
also covers some nudear risks but in the main these continue to be covered by the UK Government under the
Muclear Installalions Aol 1965,

.11 Pension costs

UKALA operates twounfunded defined beneht schemes for the beneft of its employees, one of which is closed 1o
new members, These schemes are mulli-employer and are accoun ted for in these accounts asdefined contribution
schemesin accordancewith guidanceissued by Hi Treasury while separate accounts are prepared for the schemes,
The amounts charged to the profit and loss account are the contributions payable for the year.

UKALA alzo operates two defined contribution schemes that are fully insured. No employer contribution is made
to one and for the other the cost, which is directly linked to salary, is charged to the profit and loss account at the
same lime as the salary,

Unfunded pensiaon arrangements are accountad for in accordance with FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits: The amounts
charged to the profit and loss account are the current service cost and interest on liabilities. Actuarial gains or
losses areincuded in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

112 Forelgn curmencies

All ransactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the
date the transaction takes place or at the contracted rate if the transaction is covered by a forward exchange
contract Balances deneminated in forgign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the yvear, Al forcign exchange differences are taken to the proft and loss account in the year in which
they arise,

Forward cxchange contracts are used to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk, UKAEA does notheld forward
exchange contracts for speculative purposes.
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1.13 Notional cost of capital

Motional cost of capital is calculated as 3.5 per cent of the average capital employed by UKAFA during the year.
For this purpose, capital employed is defined as comprising general reserve, revaluation reserve, investment
revaluation reserve and profitand loss account. The notional cost of capitalis abated by any actual interestinourred
during the year.

114 Restructuring

Full provision is made for the future costs of any reorganisation or restructuring having a material effect on
the nature and foous of UKAFAS aperations where the criteria of FRS 12 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’ are met,

Restrucluring provisions are expressed at current price levels and discounted at 2.8 per cenl, a real rate of interest
spedhied by HM Treasury, to take account of the long timescale over which payments are due to be made. The
financing charges in the proft and loss account incude the adjustments to amortise one year's discount and
restate the liabilities to current price levels.

Assurances covering restructuring provisions made before 1 April 2004 have been received from the DT1 and
the assodated liabilities have been declared to Parliament. A grant debtor for these liabilities is induded on the
balance sheet,

These assurances do not cover new restructuring provisions created since 1 April 2004 and the cost of these
provisions is charged directly to the profit and loss account.

115 Governmeni grants
Government grants arerecognised citherwheninvoiced or carlien, where Department of Trade and Industry letters

of comlort or ather assurances are held,

Govemiment grants rélating to the purchase of fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to the
proft and loss account over the expected useful lives of the assels concerned. Other grants are credited Lo the
profit and loss account as the related expenditureisincurred.

1.16 Hesearch and developrment

.1/ Current asset investrments

Current assetinvestiments are stated at market value,

1.18 Transfers of function

In accordance with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, transfers of function from UKALA to other public
sector organisations are accounted for using merger accounting as desaribed in FRS 6 ‘Acquisitions and Mergers!
Where applicable, the comparative figures in the accounts are restated asif the transfer had taken place in both
the current and preceding accounting periods.

2 Transfers of function

a Transfer to Civil Nuclear Police Authority

On 1 April 2005, responsibility for the UKAFA Constabulary was transferred from UKAEA to a new independent
policy authority, the Civil Mudear Police Authority, established by the Lnergy Act 2004, The UKALA Constabulary is
no longer part of UKAEA and has been renamed the Civil Nudear Constabulary (CNC),
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The assets, liabilities and employees transferred were

£m

Fixed assels 1.9
Debtors 0.6
Creditors (0.6)
Delerred incame (1.9
Provisions (0.2)
{0.2)

Mumber of employees 614

Only assets and liabilides that related to the CNC's ongoing operations were transferred. Other current assets and
liabilities were retained and settled by UKAEA.

b Derecognition of nuclear labilities

The Muclear Decommissioning Authority was established on 1 April 2005 by the Energy Act 2004 to have
stralegic responsibility for the decommissioning and dean-up of the UK public sector dvil nudear sites. From
that date, UKALA ceased to have legal or inancial responsibility for nudear liabilities on UKALA sites which have
been designated to the NDA o on non-UKAEA sites, Muclear liabilities of £4.28bn as at 1 April 2005 have been
derecognised from UKAFA'S accounts and the majority have been ransferred Lo the MDA who will make provision
for the liabilities going forward.

¢ Derecognition of fixed assets

The designation of UKAF &' sites al Dounreay, Harwell, Windscale and Winfrith 1o the NDA under the Energy Acl
2004 has resulted in the risks and benefits associated with certain fived assets on these sites transferring to the
MDA, In accordance with FRS 5 Reporting the Substance of Transactions, assets with an opening book value of
F67.17m have been derecognised from UKAEAS accounts. These assels along with cerlain new assels purchased
during 2005-2006 are now included in the accounts of the MDA,

d  Restaternent of comparatives

These wansters of function have been accounted for using merger accounting as defined in FRS & ‘Acquisitions
and Mergers'in accordance with the Government Financial Beporting Manual and the comparative figures in these
accounts have been restated. The impact of this restalement on the main account headings is shown below

Original Iransfer Hestated
£m Em £m
Profit and loss account
Turnowver 401.5 (48.5) 353.0
Other income: 2.1 {4.4) 3.7
Cperating expenditure 1111 (529 1582
Balance sheet
Tangible fixed assels 147.7 (RS0 8.7
Current assets 4,005.3 (4,202.5) 3428
Long term liabilities 4.557.3 M.312.0 2386
Reserves w7 (1&.1) fd.6



3 Turnover

Turnover is analysed by geographical area as follows
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2006 LIS
£m £m
United Kingdom 3154 304.5
Rest of Europe 45.0 48.3
Rest of World 0 0.2
i61.4 353.0

All wirnover originates in the United Kingdom,

Turneover is analysed by activity as follows

2006 2008
£m £m
Decommissioning and environmental restoration 277 2593
Fusion rescarch 65.2 b4.2
Froperty 6.3 9.9
Pensions 1.4 1.2
Other 11.4 184
361.4 3530

1 Comparative igures restated as a result of transfer of function (see Mote 2).

lurnover indudes grants-in-aid of £9./m (2004-2004% - £264.1m) recejved from the LML This has reduced as
funding for decommissioning and environmental restoration is now provided by the NDA and classed as
exlernal lurnowver,

A segmental analysis of net assets has not been disclosed, Most of the net assels are nol allacated Lo UKAFAS main
business activities. The profit for the year originated in the United Kingdom and does not relate to UKALA'S main

business activitics,

4 Staff costs

2006 2005

£m £m

Salaries B5.5 83.4
Social seourity costs 76 1.2
Cther pension costs 0.3 0.5
Staff costs capilalised 0 (0.7
93.4 90.4

Hired stall 28.5 3740
121.9 127.4
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The average number of staff during the year was

UKAEA stafl
Senior staff
Other staff

Hired staff

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of transfer of function (see Note 2).

5 Operating profitf{loss)

Operaling profiy/{loss) is stated afller charging the following items

Auditors remuncration - audit fees
Operaling lease rentals - plant and machinery
other

Fxchange loss

6  Summary of Directors’ emoluments

Directors' emoluments in the year were

Fees

Salaries

Benehts

Performance related bonuses

Pensions paid to former Directors

Further details of Directors’ ernoluments are included in the Bemuneration Report on pages 26 1o 28,

7 Pension costs

a Defined benelit schemes

20086 2005t
34 35
2,255 23R
2,289 2353
570 FisTi
2006 2005
Em frm
0.1 0.1
0.4 0.3
0.3 0
0.1 0
2006 2005
£000 £000
163 122
515 569
148 118
92 129
918 938

i 1

922 Q42

UKAEA has two delined benehl schemes: the Combined Pension Scheme {CPS), which is open 1o new members, and

the Protected Persons Supcrannuation Scheme (PPSS), which is a closed scheme. These schemes have mambers

from other employers as well as UKAFA. No infarmation in these accounts relates Lo other employers parlicipaling
in the CP5 or PP55, although UKALA has overall responsibility for the schemes, Mo contingent liability is expected

to arise from this responsibility.
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All contributions are paid to and benefits paid by HM Government via the Consolidated Fund, The surpluszes of
contributions over benefits are deemed 1o have been invested in portfalios of notional securities reflecting the
investments of a sample of UK funded pension schemes. The most recent actuarial valuations of the CPS dated
31 March 2003 and the PPSS dated 31 March 2002 show notional surpluses in the UKAEA sub-funds and UKAEA
has followed the Government Actuary s recommendation that no employer contributions need Lo be paid for the
period covered by these accounts 2004-2005 - nil).

In accordance with guidance issued by HW Treasury, these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes in these accounts. Separate audited accounts are prepared for these schemes.

b Defined contribution schiemes

UKAE A has two defined contribution schemes (the Additional Voluntary Contribution (AYC) scheme and the Shift
Pay Pension Savings Plan (5PPP) scheme) which are fully insured schemes administered by Prudential Assurance
Company Limited towhom contributions are paid. The AVC schame covers those employees of UKAEA, and of other
employers, who are members ol CPS or PPSS and who have opted lo pay additional voluntary contributions. No
employer confributions are made to this scheme. The SPPP scheme covers most of those shift working employees
of the amployers par ticipating in the AVC scheme who are members of CPS or PPSS, The costs of the SPPP scheme,
which are directly linked to shitt pay earnings, are charged to the profit and loss account at the time the shift pay is
paid, The total contributions paid by UKAEA during the yearwere £43,725 (2004 2005 - £44,063). Mo contributions

were oulslanding at this or the previous year end.

¢ Unfunded pension arrangements

The UKAEA Chicf Executive, Director, Dounreay and former Chiet Exeoutive have unfunded pension arrangaments
which are nol induded in the UKAFA pension schemes. The movement in the liability for these arrangements is
shown below

2006 2005

£000 £000
At T April 483 03
Change in discountrate 62 0
Interest on liability 29 i
Mew liabilities 0 420
Current service cost 143 0
Eenelils payable 4) i
Actuarial loss 36 0
At 31 March 749 481

The movement in the lability during the year is incuded in staff costs in the proft and loss account (see Mote 4)
and the closing liability, discounted at 2.8 per cent, isincduded in other provisions for liabilities and chargesin the
balance sheet (see Note 22).
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8  Other net financing charges

2006 2006 2005 2005
£m £m £ frn
Revalorization of nuclear fiabifities
Change in discount rate 16.9 1]
Changesin price levels 4.8 14
Amortisalion of one year's discount 3.5 4.7
Lscalation of nuclear liahility debtor (25.2) 0 (H1) 0
Revalorisation of other provisions
Change in discount rate 1.5 [}
Changesin price levels 11 1.9
Amortisalion of one year's discount 1.2 2.0
Escalation of DT grant debtor (2.3) 0.5 (3.9 0
0.5 0
1 Comparative ligures restaled as aresult of ransfer of function (see Note 2).
9  Taxation
a  Analysis of tax charge in the vear
2006 2005
£m £
Current tax
UK corporation tax for currentyear at 30 per cent 0 0
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of timing differences 0 0
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 0 0

(b)Y Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The differences are

explained below

2006 2005
£m £fm

Froftfiloss) on ordinary activities before tax 04 {1.7)
Proft/{loss) on ordinary activities before tax at the UK standard rate
of corparation tax of 30 per cent 0.1 (0.5)
Lftects of
Income which qualifies for stalulory exemplions 0 {1.3)
Capital allowances for the year in excess of depredation (0.9) {0.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.8 0.8
Income not subject to tax (0.2) L
Lasses brought forward not previously recognised [(0.8) i
Losses carried forward 0 1.4
Current tax charge for the year 0 i
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1 Comparative figuresrestated as aresult of transter of function (see Mote 2).

Prior to 2000-2001, UKALA applied for an annual exemption from corporation tax asa sdentific research association
under Section 508 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, The introduction of new criteria for defining
scenlific research associalions meant that this exemplion is no longer available to UKAFA. The basis on which
UKALA will be subject to tax from 2000-2007 to 20045-2006 has been agreed with HWV Revenue & Customs and is
unlikely to resultin LKAEA incurring any tax liabilities for the years up to the balance sheet date,

Foryearsup to 31 March 2005 UKALA benefited from a statutory exempltion from tax in respect of rental income,
yearly interest and chargeable gains. The exemptions were removed with effect from 1 Apil 2005 and the effect of
this changeisinduded in the calculation above,

IS Factors that may affea the fiture tax charge

The changes to the nudear industry that are currently being implemented and the establishment of site
licence companies will require the lax position of UKAFA in future years Lo be re-addressed with HW Revenue
& Customs,

The estimated value of the deferred tax asset not recognised, measured at a standard rate of 30 per cent, is
£8.2r (2005 - £14.0m).

10 Profit for the financial year
As a consolidated profit and loss accountisinduded in these accounts, UKALA'sindividual profit and loss account

has not been included. The result for the finandal year of UKAEA was a profit of £3.7m (2004-2005 - £0.7m).

11 Intangible fixed assets

Group and UKAEA Solbware

Licences
fm

Cost

ALT April 2005 5.8

Disposals (0.1

At 31 March 2006 57

Amortisation

ALT April 2005 4.5

Charge for year 0.5

Disposals (0.1)

At 31 March 2006 4.9

Net book value

At 31 March 2006 0.8

At 21 March 2005

1.3
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12 Tangible fixed assets

Group and LIEAEA Land and  Investment Surplus Plant and Total
buildings  properties  properties  aquipment
£ £ £ £ £

Cost or valuation

AT April 2005 234 307 1.8 251 90.0
Additions ( ] i (LX) 0.6
Disposals (0.4) 0 (0.5) (1.1 (2.0
Transfers between categorics (0.4) 1.4 (1.0 [} 0
Revaluation (1.5) ELN| 1 0 i2.h
At 31 March 2008 211 752 0.2 26 121.1
Deprediation and impairment

At April 2004 14 ] i 9.9 11.3
Charge for year 0.6 0.9 i 4.0 55
Disposals 0 0 0 {1.0) (1.0)
Iransfers between categories (.H) 0.8 0 0 0
At 31 March 2008 1.2 1.7 0 129 15.8
MNet book value

At 31 March 2006 149.% Fih 0.2 1.7 T0h.3
At 31 March 2005 220 0.7 1.8 15.2 TR7
Met book value at 21 March 2006 is

represented by

Valuation 9.9 fih 02 ] Q1.6
Cosl ] ] 0 1.7 11.7

19.9 735 0.2 1.7 105.3

1 Opening balances restated as a result of transfer of function (see Nole 7).

a  Mon-spedalised land and buildings and the land on which spedalised buildings stand were valued at
open market value for existing use at 28 February 2006 by the Valuation Office, an agency of Hivi Revenue
& Customs,

Investment properties and surplus propertics were valued at open market value at 28 February 2006 by the
Valuation Offce. UKAFA has adopled this valuation at 31 March 2006 on the grounds that there were no
material changes between these dates. Investment properties are held tor their investment potential. Rental
income from tenants outside the Group is negotiated at arm'’s length. Surplus properties are not being used
in the Group's operating activities and are incuded within fixed assets as it is unlikely that they will all be
disposad of within ayear of the balance sheet date,

b Allland and buildings are freehaold. Land is stated at its revalued amount of £15.6m (2005 - £16.9m).

¢ Capital commiments at 31 March 2006 amounted to £nil (2005 - £nil).



13 Fixed assetinvestments
LIKAEA

Cost and net book value

A1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006

Subsidiary undertakings
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Subsidiary Other
undertakings investments Tertal
£m £ £m
3.0 0 30

ALA Insurance Ltd, which isincorporated in the |sle of Man, is a wholly owned subsidiary of UKALA. The company's

prindpal activity isinsurance,

UKALA Ltd, was incorporated in the United Kingdom during the vear and is a wholly owned subsidiary of UKALA,
The company’s principal activity is project management and consultancy.

Otfrer investments

LUKAEAS 49 per cent interest in the ordinary share capital of Fast Beactor Technelogy Limited is incuded as an
inveslment al a book value of 749 and nol treated as an assodale, since the Secretary of Stale for Trade and
Industry has ruled that dividends shall be paid to the Department of Trade and Industry. The company has been
dormant for the current and previous year and has net assets at 31 March 2006 of £0.Tm (2005 - £0.7m).

14 Stocks and workin progress

Raw materials and general stores
Shorl-Lterm work in progress

Group and UKAEA

2006 2005
£rm £rn
1.2 1.1
3.5 a0
4.7 7.1

The replacement cost of raw materials and general stores is not materially different from the balance sheet value,

15  Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors

Restructuring dehtors

Prepayments and acorued income
Inter-company account

WAl

DTl current acoount

Other debtors

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Restructuring debtors
Other debtors

Group Group UKAEA LIEALA
2005 2008t 2006 2008
£fm £m £m £m
4.9 9.6 4.9 9.6
5.9 &4 3.9 a4
39.7 3.5 39.5 3.5
0 0 1.2 0
4.8 o 4.8 B5
34.7 a4.7 34.7 a4.7
0.3 0.3 0.6 0.3
20.3 63.0 2.6 &63.0
321 33.3 2.1 333
0.2 0.4 0.2 0.4
32.3 EE 32.3 337
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Nudear liability debtor (see Note 21)
Debtors include intra-government balances as follows

Balanceswith the Department of Trade and Industry
Balances with other central government bodies

Balances with public corporations

1 Comparative figures restated as aresult of transfer of function (see Mote 2).

18 Current asset investments

Iixed term deposits with commercial banks
Other investments

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Irade creditors

Accruals

Payments received on account
laxation and social security
WA VAT repayment

Cither creditors

Creditors indude intra-government balances as follows
Balances with the Department of Trade and Industry
Balanceswith other central government bodies

Balances with public corporations

1 Comparative igures restaled as aresult of ransfer of function (see Nole 2.

160.0 138,/ 160.0 138,/
230.9 213.0 230.9 2130
37.7 0.9 37.7 0.9
0.4 07 0.4 0.7
269.0 4.8 269.0 4.8
Group Group

2006 20045

£m fm

0 0.7

0 0.1

0 10.8

Group and LIKAEA

2006 st

£m £m

10.0 153

79.6 69.2

15.6 30.7

24 28

34.6 ¥

2.0 .5

151.2 124.5

0 0.1

4.6 0

30.3 29.6

64.9 29.7
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group and UKAEA
2006 LIS
£ £m
Paymenls received on account 25.2 a0.4
Other creditors 0.3 0.3
25.5 an.s

Repayable as follows
Beltween one and bwo years 35 55
Between two to five years 3.0 123
Aller five years 19.0 749
255 307

1 Comparative iguresrestated as aresult of transfer of function (see Mote 2),

19 Commitments under operating leases

Plant and equipment

2006 2005
£m £m

Annual cormmitrments under non-cancellable operating feases were as follows
Expiring within one year 0.7 0.4
Lxpiring between one and two years 0.6 0.3
Fxpiring beltween two and live years 1.7 0.2
3.0 0.9

20 Deferred income

Group and LUEKAEA

2006 205!
£m £m
A1 April 16.6 Th8
Capital grants received 0.5 4.1
Releaszed to profit and loss account i4.5) (1.3)
Al 31 March 12.6 168.6

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of ransfer of function (see Mote 2).
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21 Nuclear liabilities

Group and LIKAEA
2006 ML
£m £fm
AL April 138.7 1295
Firancing charges
Changein discountrate 16.9 0
Changes in price levels 4.8 34
Arnortisation of one year's discount 35 4.7
Increase/(decrease) in liahilities (2.6) 2.6
Fxpenditure during year (1.3) (1.5)
At 31 March 160.0 138.7

1 Comparative figures restated as a result of transfer of function (see Note 2).

LIKAEA's nuclear liabilities comprise the estimated costs of decommissioning nuclear fusion rescarch facilities atits
Culham sile, induding the storage, processing and eventual disposing of radicaclive wastes,

Caloulation of the liabilites is based on the technical assessments of the processes and methods likely to be used
in the luture to carry oul the work, Fstimales are derived from the latest technical knowledge and commercial
information available, taking into account currentlegislation, regulations and Government policy. Summary igures
are built up by aggregating detailed estimates for indididual liabilities, Allowance is also made for infrastructure
costs, which are an appropriate share of site running costs and other overhead costs attributable to plant and
buildings. The caloulation is reassessed annually.

The best estimate of £160.0m at 31 March 2006 is discounted at 2.2 per cent to the balance sheet date and
cxpressed in 20052000 mongy values, The timescale over which it is estimated the costs will need to be inourred
is as lollows

2006 ML

£m £m

Up to 3 years 9.8 2.9
From 4 to 10 years 106.0 92,0
Bevond 10 vears 44.2 438
160.0 1387

1 Comparative ligures restated as aresult of ransier of function (see Note 2).
The latest estimate of the undiscounted cost of dealing with the liakilitiesis £188.2m (2005 - £185.0m).

The cost is recoverable from the Department of Trade and Industry under a Letter of Understanding issued by the
then Secretary of State for Energy in May 1986 and confirmed in June 1926, A debtor is included on the balance
sheel lor contnbulions receivable from the DT

Since much of the work required to deal with the liabilities will not be done until well into the future, there is
a significant uncertainty as to the amount of the provision and the assodated debtor due from the DT This
significant uncertainty does notimpact on cither net assets or the net proft reported in the accounts,



22 QOther provisions for liabilities and charges
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Group Restructuring Other Total
fm fm fm
AT April 2005 43.6 1.1 A5/
Financing charges
Change in discount rate 1.5 0 1.5
Changesin price levels 1.1 0 1.1
Amortisation of oneyear's discount 1.2 0 1.2
Increass in provisions 51 1.2 0.3
Lxpenditure during year (H.R) (n.3) (9.1
At 31 March 2008 a3.7 5.0 aR.7
UKAEA Restrucluring Oher Tostal
£m fm £m
AT April 2005 43.6 2.7 44,3
Firancing charges
Change in discountrate [ 0 l.5
Changes in price levels 1.1 0 1.1
Amortisation of oneyear's discount 1.2 0 1.2
Increase in provisions 4. 1.5 6.6
Expenditure during year {8.8) (0.4) (9.2}
At 31 March 2006 43.7 iH 455

1 Opening balances restated as aresult of transfer of funclion (see Note 7).

The restructuring provisions have been made to cover continuing annual payments o be made under UEAEA'S
garly retirement arrangements Lo individuals who had retired early, or had accepled early retirement, before
31 March 2006, These payments continue at least until the date at which the individual would have reached
normal retirement age. Lump sums paid to individuals onretirement are held as debtors, since they are refundable
to UKAFA from the appropriale pension scheme at or allter the date on which the individual concerned would
have reached normal retirement age. Provisions for other arcas are now minimal and are based on UKAEA's best
judgement of the level and cost of the restructuring which will be needed. The undiscounted costs are £50.7m
(2005 - £49.9m) and are estimated to be incurred over a period up to 2/ years,

Other provisions include provisions for insurance daims and unfunded pension liabilities.
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232 Reserves

Group Investment  Proftand
General Revaluation Revaluation lewss
£m fm £m £m
AL April 20051 0h.8 120 A3 (58.5)
surplus on revaluation of tangible fixed assets 0 (2.2) 34.7 0
Depreciation on revalued tangible fixed assets 0 i0.1) 0 0.1
Disposal of revalued tangible fixed assets 0 (0.5) [} 0.5
Froft for the year 0 0 [} 3.1
At 31 March 2006 HoH Q.2 S0 (249.4)
LIKAFA
AT April 2005 86.8 12.0 24.3 (065.2)
sSurplus on revaluation of tangible fixed assets V] (2.2) 7 0
Depreciation on revalued tangible fixed assets 0 0.1 [} 0.1
Disposal of revalued tangible fixed assets 0 (0.5) [} 0.5
Proft for the year V] 0 1] 3./
At 31 March 2006 86.8 9.2 50.0 (60.9)
1 Opening balances restated as a result of transfer of function (see Mote 2).
24 Reconciliation of movements in Government funds
Group Group LIKAEA, LIKAEA
2006 205 A00E 204t
£fm fm fm £m
lotal recognised gains/{losses) relating to the year 35.6 1 6.2 (1.2)
Opening Government funds ad.6 65.7 57.9 59,
Closing Government funds 100.2 0.6 94.1 579

1 Comparative igures restaled as aresult of ransfer of function (see Nole 2.

Government funds comprise general reserve revaluation reserve and profit and loss account.

25 Finandal instruments

FRS 13 Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments’ requires disclosure of the role that inancial instruments have
had during the year in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities.

Due to the largely non-trading nature of its activities and the way in which it is inanced, UKAEA is not exposcd
Lo the degree of inandal risk faced by other business entities. Moreover, financial instruments play a much more
limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to which FRS 13 mainly
applies, Generally, finandal assets and liakilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not
held to change the risks facing UKAFA inundertaking its activilies.

UKAFA has laken advantage of the exermplion in FRS 13 not 1o give discdosures in respect of short term debilors
and creditors,

While UKAFEA has significant finandal hiabilities attaching to nudear liabilities and other provisions, the risks
attaching to these financial liabilities do not rest with UKALA as they are broadly matched by debror balances
due from the DT UKAEA had no other long term financial liakilities at any time during the current or prior
financial years.
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Besides the long term debtor balances referred to above. UKALA's inandal assets comprised cash at bank and
in handd.

Liquidity, Interest Rate and Foreign Currency risk

UKALA is mainly financed by income from other public sector bodies and there is therefore no exposure o
significant liquidity risks.

All current assetinvestments and cash balances on depositwere held in highly rated short term fixed rate deposits
ane UKAEA therefare had na significant interest rate risk.

LKAE A s exposed to forcign cumrency risk through its operations asitreceives a proportion of itsincome in curos.
AL 31 March 2008, euro nel assels were FO.5m (2005 - £9.4m). In order Lo hedge its exposure Lo foreign currency
risk on future euro income, UKALA has taken out forward exchange contracts. At 31 March 2006, the fair value
of the liability under the forward exchange contracts was estimated at £0.4m 2005 - asset of £0.7m), reflecting
the depredalion of sterling against the euro since the contracts were entered into. This liability will aystallise
during the year ended 31 March 200/, Unrealised gains of £0./m arising in the previous year were realised during
the year.

26 Statement relating to statutory borrowing limit

During 2005 2006, the statutory borrowing limit set by Section 3 of the Atomic Energy Authority Act 19806 as
amended by the UK Atomic Fnergy Autharity (Limil of Borrowing) Order 1997 remained at £ 200m. There were no
borrowings during the current or previous year,

27 Contingent liabilities

There are conlingent liabilities in respect of guarantees and daims arising in the normal course of business; claims
relating to ashestos contamination; and indemnities issued with the consent of the Secretary of State for Irade
and Industry and HM Treasury inrespect of daims for nucear damage arising from nuclear matter in the course of
carriage. Il is nol expected thal these will have a material impact on the inancial position ol UKAEA.

28 Related parties

Dovernrment Bodies

LKAEA is a Non Departmental Public Body sponsored by the DT, which is regarded as a related party, During
the year, UKAFA has had various material transactions with the DTI and with other entities for which the DT
is regarded as the responsible department, mainly the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority, Further details of
LIKAEAS transactions with these bodies are included in the Management Commentary and the balances at the
year end are induded at Notes 15 and 17.

I addition, UKAEA has a small number of material transactions with other Government Deparmments and other
central Government bodies,

Agency Transactions

Contracls administered by UKAFA on behall of the DTI, but not directly related to the Group's activilies, have
been excluded from the profit and loss account. The value of these contracts in 2005-2006 amounted to £1.5m
(20042005 - £1.60m). Costs incurred and charges to customers made for the administration of these contracts are
included in the proit and loss account,
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